B, $. Sharma & Co.

¢ - . Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members
Digital Ventures Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement
1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Digital Ventures
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind
AS financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (herein - after referred to as “Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31t March 2024, and its loss, total comprehensive income, chan ges in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

3. Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board Report but does not include the Ind AS Financial
Statements and my auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

4. Emphasis of matters:
Reference is invited to the following notes:

(i) Note 34- During the earlier years, Company had defaulted in repayment of loans
availed from two lenders. In this regard, both of the lenders had called upon the
Company to make payment of an amount of Rs.9,162.00 lakhs and Rs. 2,299.59
outstanding as at 30 June 2021 with further interest w.e.f. 01 July 2021 as per the
terms of sanction letters. Further, the Company had also received notices from
three lenders for invocation of corporate guarantees and two of the lenders had
also initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the
Company (Corporate guarantor/Corporate debtor). Considering the improved
admissions and revival of the classroom attendance and mutually agreed terms
between the lenders and the Company, a cut back arrangement was agreed by
virtue of which certain percentage of collection from school at Mumbai been
recovered by lenders towards the term loan dues. Further, the Company entered
into a settlement agreement during the year to settle the corporate guarantee
obligations of the Company for an amount of Rs.28,500 lakhs. The Company is in
negotiation with lenders for restructuring and rearrangement of the said balance
loans and is hopeful of an amicable mutually agreed resolution to the said proposal
and believes that company will enable to settle its liabilities as they fall due, and
accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

(ii) Note 35 - As reported in preceding year, Yes Bank Limited (Yes Bank) vide its
notice dated 9 August 2021 (received on 10 August 2021) addressed to the
Company had invoked the Corporate Guarantee upon non-repayment of credit
facilities (during COVID-19 pandemic) availed by four trusts/entity, and called
upon the Company to make payment of an amount of */lakhs 44,962.56 (including
interest and other charges upto 31 July 2021). Also, the Company received notice
dated 01 December 2022, regarding filing of petitions by Yes Bank under Section 7
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) to initiate Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company (as corporate guarantors)
before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai. Further,
Yes Bank vide its letters dated 30 December 2022 has informed the Company that
it has assigned and transferred the above credit facilities to ].C. Flowers Asset
Reconstructions Private Limited (J.C. Flowers) and the amount outstanding




B S SHARMA & CO., DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2023-24

thereagainst as at 30 November 2022 is */lakhs 52,254.63 (including interest and
penal charges). Further, on August 7, 2023, the Company and Zee Learn Limited
(ZLL) along with four trusts/entity entered into settlement agreement with J.C
Flowers to settle obligations with respect to loans borrowed by the said four
trusts/entity. As per the terms of the settlement agreement, the Company, ZLL
along with four trusts/entity have agreed to settle the above obligation for * /lakhs
28,500 (to be paid jointly and severally by Company, ZLL along with four
trusts/entity) pursuant to which Corporate Guarantee obligations and other
securities created by Company and ZLL will be released by JC Flowers on receipt
of the said settlement amount. The said settlement agreement became effective
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and the timelines for payment of the said
settlement amount have from time to time been extended by JC Flowers along with
payment of applicable interest and the latest extension given is till 30 May 2024.
The Company, ZLL and four trusts/entity have requested JC Flowers for further
extension of time till 30 June 2024. However, the said trusts/entity have started
running their operations effectively under the brick and mortar model and since
the CIRP matter of the Company is sub-judice, and considering settlement of
Corporate Guarantee obligation is in process, the Company is of the opinion that
no liability is required to be provided as at 31 March 2024.

(iii) During the year, Zee Learn Limited (Holding Company) has given Interest waiver on
loan received by the Company from it for the period from 01-04-2023 to 31-03-2024,
accordingly the Company has not accounted for interest cost for the period 01-04-2023
to 31-03-2024 on the said outstanding loan of Rs.10,932.05 Lakhs.

(iv) Note 45 - During the earlier years, the Company had given Capital advances and
deposits to Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited (PIIPL) towards construction of
schools. There are ongoing proceedings going on against PIIPL w.r.t Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (IBC) before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Mumbai.
Accordingly, the Company, out of abundant caution and prudent accounting practices,
has provided /lakhs 1,451.06 towards impairment of its capital advances and deposits
and the same was disclosed as an "Exceptional item" in the financial statements for the
year ended 31 Mar 2024.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
5. Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS prescribed under Section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
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appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but
to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are




B S SHARMA & CO., DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2023-24

inadequate, to modify my opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India vide notification no. 5.0. 849 (E) dated 25th February
2020, further amended vide its order dated 24th March 2020 and 17th December 2020
subsequently in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit, except as
otherwise stated in para 4- Emphasis of matters, herein above.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on 31t March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; the Company has not
paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position except as otherwise stated in Annexure to Auditors’ Report Para
(vii)(b) and Note no. 30 of Notes to Ind AS Financial statements hereto.

ii. Provision has been made in these Ind AS financial statements as required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund, since the same is not applicable to the Company.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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¢) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause iv (a) and iv (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v.  Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question
of commenting on whether dividend declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For BS SHARMA & CO.,
artered Accountants
Fifm Registration No. 128249W

CA BSSH
PARTNER
Membership No.031578

UDIN No.: 24031578BKAUXP1140

A;

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 24.05.2024.
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ANNEXURE"A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Reference is invited to paragraph 7(1) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date viz.,
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act to the members of DIGITAL
VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

(i) Inrespect of its Property, Plant and Equipment:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

(b) The major Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically verified by
the management at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(€) According to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of the immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Mee
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder during
the year.

(ii) Inventory:

The Company does not have any inventory, and no working capital limits is taken at all
hence the issue relating to borrowing in excess of five crore rupees (at any point of time
during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions based on security of
current assets, is not applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are
not applicable.
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(iii) Loans secured or unsecured granted:

The Company has, during the year, not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) Loan to directors and investment by Company:

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has complied, as
applicable, with the requirements of section 185 and 186 in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, or security made by it during the year under audit.

(v) Public Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,
where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) Cost Accounting Records:

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable.

(vii) Statutory Compliance:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as stated hereunder:

Name of the | Nature  of | Amount Amount | Period to | Forum where
statute dues Paid which the | dispute is
Under amount relates | pending,
Protest
Income Tax | Income Tax 66,18,198 | NIL AY 2012-13 Commissioner of
Act 1961 Income (A)-12
Income Tax | Income Tax 1,58,60,036 | NIL AY 2013-14 Commissioner of
Act 1961 Income (A)-12




B S SHARMA & CO., DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ANNEX “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 2023-24

(viii) Proceedings under Tax Assessment & Income disclosed thereunder:

According to the information and explanation given to us, company has no transactions,
which has not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(ix)  Default in repayment of loans etc., from lenders:
(a) In our opinion, the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings

or in the payment of interest thereon to lenders during the year, as reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date viz.,

Particulars Amount in Rs.

a. Principal overdue: Rs.3445.48 Lakhs
b. Interest-overdue Rs.4093.40Lakhs
c. Total dues overdue Rs.7538.88 Lakhs

(b) the Company is not declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to me, no fresh term loans were
applied for and disbursed hence the purpose for which the loans were obtained clause is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, no funds, during the year,
were raised on short term basis hence reporting thereof of utilization for long-term
purposes is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies and the Company has no borrowing, including debt securities during
the year,

(x) Application of Money Received from Equity or Loan:

(@) The Company has not raised money by way of an initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year.

(%%/
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(xi) Fraud Reporting:

(@) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no fraud by the
company or any fraud on the company, which has not been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints, received during the year by the company.

(xii) Nidhi Company-Compliance with Deposits:

The Company is not a Nidhi company; accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions:

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements
at Note no. 37 of the notes forming part of the standalone financial statement as required
by the Accounting Standards and the Companies Act, 2013.

(xiv) Internal Audit:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has an
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

(xv) Transaction with Director:

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) Registration with RBI:

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xvi)
of the Order are not applicable.

(xvii) Cash Losses:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted we are of the opinion that the company has incurred cash losses
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during the financial year and had cash loss during immediately preceding financial year.
(xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditors:

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

(xix) Material Uncertainty on meeting liabilities:

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, my knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which caused us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  Transfer to fund specified under schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013:

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are
not applicable.

(xxi) Adverse remarks or qualification under CARO Report in Consolidated Financial
Statements:

The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in
respect of the said clause under this report.

For BS SHARMA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

CA B SSHARMA,
PARTNER
Membership No.031578

UDIN No.: 24031578BKAUXP1140

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 24.05.2024.
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 7(2)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our report of even date)

Repert on the Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
as of and for the year ended 31st March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting ('IFCOFR') of Digital Ventures
Private Limited ("hereinafter referred to as “the Company"), which is a company
incorporated in India, as ‘of that date. '

M.anagerpent's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Lo*‘npanys management' and Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maindaining internal financial controis ‘based on the internal
coritrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essentia! components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audii
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
C‘hc_rtored Accountarnits of India. These responsibilities include the t.le51gn
irapleraéntation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effec tively for ensuring the orderiy’ and efficient conduct of its
busiress, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the agcountlr\g records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the C‘ompames Act, 2013.

Am‘:lifbr's Responsibility

Our mSpnrhlbnhty is to express an OplnIO[‘l on the Companys internal fmarmal
Contruls over financial lepm‘tmg based on our audit We conducted our audit in
a“cordance with the' (“u1dance Note on Audit of Interral Fmdnual Controls Over
Finaricial” ‘éep(.‘)rhng {the "Guidahice Note"y issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Audltmg prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Compames 'Act, 2013 to the extent apphcab]e to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethlcal requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable ‘assurance abott whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporhng was established and maintained and if such contrcls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Ouy audit involves performing procedures, on test basis, to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial

303, Level 3, Guruprabha CHS Ltd., 507-508 TPS IV, Sunder Nagar, Senapati Bapat Road, Dadar W), Mumbai - 400 028.
=022~ 40030929 / 24368252 / 66623]97 B4 bssharma@bssco co.in, sbsharma@bssco colinm www., bss.co co.in
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reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting are, checked on test basis, considering the size
volume of transactions and nature of business, operating effectively as at March
31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B S SHARMA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
irm Registration No. 128249W

PARTNER
Membership No.031578
UDIN No.: 24031578 BKAUXP1140

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 24.05.2024.




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheetas at 31 March 2024

{ZTin lakhs)
Mata 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Auditad Auditad
ASSETS
Mon-currant assats
(a) Investment property 3 43,471.61 15,035.82
{b) Investment property under development 3 3,213.95 32,719.88
(c) Right of use assats 4 1,940.24 2,015.50
(d) Intangible assats 5 8,916.41 3,8%6.41
(2) Intangible assets under davelopment 5 - 5,250.00
(f) Financial assets
(i) Loans 6 2,272.73 1,940.28
(ii) Other financial assets 7 33.64 36.32
(g) Income tax assets (net) g 1,600.45 1,648.64
(h) Other non-current assets 10 174.11 1,630.87
Total non-currant assats 66,623.13 63,173.72
Currant assats
(a) Financial assats
(i) Trade raceivables 11 1,875.25 1,676.51
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 12 101.79 45.96
(b} Other current assets &0 8.43 8.79
Total current assets 1,985.47 1,731.26
Total assets 63,613.65 69,904.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 501.00 501.00
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 14 11,332.77 11,331.75
(c) Other equity 15 10,587.14 13,235.88
Total equity 22,820.91 25,068.63
Liabilities
Mon-currant liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
() Borrowings 15 27,572.61 26,546.39
(ii) Others 17 1,220.87 1,085.81
(iii) Lease liability 13 2,455.66 2,303.88
{b) Provisions 13 0.40 -
(c) Deferrad tax Liablities (net) ] - o.01
{d) Other non current liabilities 20 8,804.55 9,261.04
Total non-currant liabilities 40,054.09 39,206.13
Currant liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 3,092.50 3,092.50
(if) Others 17 2,095.52 1,912.22
(iif) Lease liability 13 52.15 57.00
(b} Other currant liabilities 20 498.34 568.50
{¢) Provisions 19 0.10 =
Total current liabilities 5,738.65 5,630.22
Total liakilities 45,792.74 44,836.35
68,613.65 63,904.98 |

Total equity and liabilities
Notas forming part of tha finandial statements
As per our attacned report of even date
a"; 5. SHARMA &Co.

Cractared Acc e
Ffm Regstrinok No, 1282430

©A 5. 5. Sharma
Mlembership Numbear | O
Partner

Placa: Mumbai

Darg: 24th May 2024

7ar and on hehail of the Board

DiN. QBRT:243

Rashan Lal Kamibof

Jirector
OiM: 01078065




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the yéar ended 31 March 2024

; (% in lakhs)
Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Audited Audited
Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 1,204.99 1,203.74
Other income 22 848.15 797.17
Total ; 2,053.14 2,000.91
Expenses t
Employee benefits expense 23 ; 7.00 532
Finance costs ! 24 1,444.31 1,966.62
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 1,218.69 1,228.02
Other expenses 26 180.81 213.34 :
Total 2,850.81 3,413.30
Frofit before tax {797.67) {1,412.39)
Less ; Exceptional item = 1,451.06 10,855.00
Loss before tax after exceptional items {2,248.73) (12,267.39)
Less : Tax expense "
Current tax - current year =
Deferred tax benefit including MAT credit entitiement -
Loss for the year (&) (2,248.73) (12,267.39)
Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{i} Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation b 1.00
{il) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to the profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income (B) - 1.00
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (A+B) (2,248.73) (12,266.29)| ,
1
Earnings per equity share (face value ¥ 10 each)
Basic 33 (44.88) {244.86)
Diluted (44.88) {244.86)

Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52

As per our attached report of even date

B. S. SHARMA &Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

iy

CA B. 8. Sharma it Bansal Roshan Lal Kamboj
Membership Number : 031578 Ll Director Director
Partner s DiN: 06872243 DIN: 01076066

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May 2024



DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2024
(T in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Loss befare tax after exceptional items {2,248.73) {12,267.39)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation ) 1,218.69 1,228.02
Interest Income 1838.12) {794.24)
Excess liability written off (10.04) -
Interest Expense 1,444.31 1,643.45
Exceptional item 1,451.06 |- 10,855.00 |
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,017.17 66433 |
Adjustments for:
(Increase) / Decrease In trade and other receivables (253.19) (266.26)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables (218.52) 41.46
Cash Generated from Operations H 545.45 440,03
Direct Taxes paid ! 48.15 (15.23)
Net Cash from/{used in) Operating Activities (A} 593.51 424.80 |

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets {including Capital Work in Progress) i - (35.91)
Proceed from/(Investments) in deposits with bank 1 = -
Loan given to Others {832.15) {903.85
Loan Repaid from Others 493,69 668.98
Net Cash used in Investing Activities [B) {332.46) (270.78)

o Cash Fiow from Financing Activities
Froceeds fram long-term borrowings . -
Repayment of noir-current borrowings - -
Payment of fease liabilities ' (205.33) (263.95)
Iterest paid . - -
Net Cash from/{used in) Financing Activities (C} {205.33) (263.93)
MNet Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalent {A+B+C) £5.82 | (109.97)
Zash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 45.96 155.94
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 101.78 45.96
Componentis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand =
Balance with Scheduled Banks in .
- Current Accounts | 101.79 45.96
Total cash and cash equivaients | 101.79 45,96

{
Note:
1) Prewious year's figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary,

As per our attached repuﬁ: of even date For aad on behalf of the Beard

B. 5. SHARMA B.Co.

iChaftered Accountants

rm Re, ra1[ion No. 128249W
il

CA B. 5. Sharma it Bansal Roshan Lal Kamboj

Membership Number : 031578 Director Director

Partner DIN: 06272243 DIN: 01076066

Place: Mumbai

Date: 24th May 2024




A. Equity share capital

DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note (T in lakhs)
As at 01 April 2022 501.00
Changes in equity share capital 12a -
As at March 31 2023 501.00
Changes in equity share capital 12a - ]
As at 31 March 2024 501.00
B. Other equity i# in lakhs)
Reserve and Surplus Other Totai other equity
Comprehensive
income
Capital Contribution Securities Premium | Equity Comp of Retained earnings
from Holding company optionally convertible
debentures *
As at 01 April 2022 860.67 19,662.00 - {1,251.50) 0.51 19,271.68
Profit for the year - (12,268.26)| - {12,268.26)
Issued during the year 5,231.48 ©6,231.48
Other comprehensive income - - 1.00 1.00
Total comprehensive income / {loss) for the year - - 6,231.48 (12,268 26) 1.00 (6,035.79)
860.67 19,662.00 6,231.48 {13,519.76)|" 1.51 13,235.89
Less: Dividend on 0.1% Non-Convertible Non-Cumuiative - - (0.01) {0.01)
'Redeemable Preference Shares
As at March 21 2023 B60.67 19,662.00 B,231.48 {13,515.77) 151 13,235.88 i
Loss far the year > = E (2,248.74) " {2,248.74);
Issued during the year °
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year % = = (2,24874) £ (2,248.74)
{As at 31 March 2024 860.67 19,662.00 6,231.48 (15,768.51) 151 10,987.14
* Equity component of optionally convertible debentures represents 115,788,924, 0.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures of ¥ 10 each
1) Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares, It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
2} Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of losses if any made by the Company over the years, ?

Notes farming part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
B. 5. SHARMA &Co.

i hartered Accountants
WP Regjstrbtion No. 128249W

CA B. 5. Sharma
Membership Number : 031578 \]
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th May 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board

Director
DIN: 06872243

Roshan Lal Kamkoj

Director

DiN: 01076066
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DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financ:al statements
Corporate information

Digital Vertures Private Limited (“the Company”), incarnorated on 20 Octeber 2006 In the state of Maharachtra with Company Registration No.
U72300MH2006PTC165215 The company is in the business of proviging and servicing school infrastruture on long term agreements. The company
became a subsidiary of Zee Learn Limited with effect from 01 April 2015,

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the indisn Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘ind AS') as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘Act’) read with the Compaiies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as and when
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and rules frameg there under ana guid=fines issued by Securities and Cxchange Board of India
(SEBI).

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the histurics’ cost convention, on the acerial basls of accounting except for
certain financial assets and habifities that are measured st fair values at the end of 2ach reporting period, as stated in the accounting poiicies stated
out below

F ional and F ion currency

These financial statements are presented in indian Aupess, which is aise the Company's functionz| ¢
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements 4rd n1o.es have been rounded oif 1o the nea
(except per share data), unless otherwise stateg. Zero '3 G0 denotes amount iess thas 1500/

TRNCY.
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 1t

Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-cutrent as per the company s horne! aoerating cycle {twelve months) and other
critenia set oul in the Schedule Il wo the ael

Property, piant and equipment

Freehold fand Is carried at cost. Other property, plant and equipment acquived are measured on initial recognition at cost, Subsequent to initial
iecognition, property, piant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated deprecistion and sccumulated impalrment losses, .f any Such
cost includes the cast of repiacing part of the piaat and equipment and borrowing costs tor long-term construction projects if the recognition
criterss are met. When significant parts of plant and eguipment a5 2 required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specitic useful lives. The rarrying amount of the replaced pant accounted-for as a separate asset previcusly s derecopnised. Likewise,
when 2 major inspection is perforraed, [ts cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 45 a replacement if the recogrition
critera are satistied. All sther repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss when icurred. The prasent value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an assel after itz use is included in the cost af the respective asset If the recognition criteria for a
provision are met

apital work-in-progress camprites cast Jf property, plant and equy.ment and rels.2o 2xpenses that aie not yet ready for their intended use at the
reporting date

Rizh- of use of assets

The right-of-use asseis are initally recognized at cost, which compnises the initial smount of the iease liability adjustad for any lease payments
rnade at or prior to the commencement date of the lease pius any initia® direct costs tess any lzase incentives. They are subseguently measured at
cost less accumuiated cepreciation snd impairment losses.

Investment property

Investment property includes iand, held for capitai appreciation «no earning rantals, Bulldings, Furniture and Fixures, Office Equipments and
Computers, neld for earning rentals, investment property is measured initially at cost including purchase price. Land Is measured and rarnied at cost
and ather Investinent properties are ir i at cost less accumlated depreciation and accumlates impairment, it any.

Intangib'e assets

intangible assets acquired or developed are measured on initiai recognition at cost and stated at cost less accumulated amortisatior and
Impairment loss, If any. Expenditure incurred on acquisition / development of intangibie assets which are not put/ready to use at the reporting date
is disclosed under intangikle assets under development

Depreclation / amordsation on property, plant and equipment / intangible assets .

Depreciable amount far prbperw. plant and equipment / Intangible fixed assets is the cost of an azzet, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. .

Degreciation un propariy, piant and equipmentiexcept freehola land which iss stated at cost] is orovided on straight-line methos as per the usefu!
‘ife preseriped e Scheduie 1 to the Companies Art, 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are smortised over the period of Lease

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straignt-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are i for reco bility whenever events o changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets are amortisea on straight line basis over their respactive individual usefui lives estimated by the management. The useful life of
intangibie assets are 3 veais.

impairment of Property, plant and equip Jintangibie assets/ Investment Progerty
The carrying amcunts of the Companry s property, pani and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each “enoriing date to determine
whether there s any incication of impairment. it there are indicators of impairment, an ssessment s made to determine whether the asset’s
carrying value exceeds its recoverable armount. Where it is not pocsible to estimate the recoverable amount uf an individual asset, the Compary
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which tii= asset belongs.

An impairment is recognizad in statement of profit and loss whenever the carrgng amouct of an csset o (5 cash ecaiating unit exceeds its
recoverable armount, The recovershie ameunt is the highe! of net selling price, defited as the fair value less costs Lo s2l, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated futire cash Rows are discounted to their present velve Using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market rates and risks specific to the 2sset, :

An impairment loss for an individual asset or cash generating urit are reversed it there has beon 2 change i estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount simce Lhe iast impaininent loss was rercgnised and ‘s only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amoint that would have been determined, nat of deprecation or amortisation, if oo mpairment ioss had been recognisad

Derecognition of orogarty, plant sad eguigment / Intangibles / investment proparty




(i

(i}

1)

(ii}
(A}

(B)

(a

b

The carrying amount of an item of preperty, plant and equipment / right of use assets / intangibies / Investment property is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising frorn the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment / right of use of zssets / intangibles 1= measured as the difference betwesn the ret disposal in proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the statement of prafit and loss when the item is derecognised

Leases

The Company's lease aszet classes primarily consist of leases for building premises . The Company assesses whether a contract _ontains a lease, al
inception of a contract. A contract s, or coniains, a |ease if the contract conveys the right to coniroi the use of an Identified asset for a period of
time i exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel, the Company assesses
whether: {i) the contracl involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially ail of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) tha Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assets ("ROU"} and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases witk a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the Lerm of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options te extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU zssets and lease linbilities
includes these options when it is r=asonably certain that they will be exercised.

The lease liabifity is initially measured at amortized cost at the presant value of the future lease pay ts. The lease pay s are discounted usirg
the interzst rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the acemental borrowing rates In.the country of domicile of thase
|2ases. Lease liagilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment io tne reizied right of use assel if the Companv chianges its assessment if
whether it will exercise an extecsion or a termination option

Finance lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term: of tha iease transter subs antially al! the nisks and rewzrds of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating 'eases.

Operating lease [ Short-ter leases and leases of low-valun assets

The Company applias the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term: dzases of rented premises {12, those louses that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the zommencemeont dore and uo not covtar: @ purcnase option). 't alse appoes the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of otfice equipinient that are considered to be sow velue, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value aszets are recogmised as expense on a strasght-line basic over the lease term

Cash and cash equivalents .
Cash and cash equivaients in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-terrn deposits with an odginal maturity of Three
manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statemant of casi flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and on hand, short-term deposits and balances
earmarked, as defined as they are considerad an integral part of company's cash management

inventories

Educations! zoods and equipments ure valued at lawer of cast or estitaated net resiizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase, freight and other
axpense incurred i bringing the invertories to their present iocation and cordition. Costs are taken on weighted average basis and specific
igentification method.

Fair value messurement

The Company has an established contral framewark with respect 1o the measurement of fair values The management regularly reviews significar
unobservabie \nputs and valuation adjustments.

All financial sssets and financial liabiliies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financiai statements are catenorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair valus maasurement as a whole:

-Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) inarket orices in active markeats for identical assets or iiabilities;

-Level 2 — Valuation techmiques for which the iowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly obsiivable,
a2

-Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest ievei input that s significant ta the fair value measurement is unobservable,

if the inputs used o measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of a fair value hierarchy, then .he fair value
measurement is categorized in iis entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lawes: level input that is sigmificant 1o the sntire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurteq.

Financial instruments
Flnenclal instrumenis is ary cortract that gives rise ta 2 financial asset of one entity and a financia: dability or equity instrument of another entity

Initial recognition and of financinl assets and financial Habifities

Financial assets are recognized when the company becomes a party to e conwaciual provisions of the financial instruments. Finencial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at {air value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ar msve of finanoial assets
and financial liabiiities (cther than financial assets and financiai liabilities av fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the
falr value of the financial assets or financial liabiliies, as appropriate, on Initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributabie to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabiiities at fair value thraugh profit and loss are recognised iIrmmediately in the st of profit and loss.

Financial assets

Subseqguent measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: amortised cost, finanoai assets ‘at Tair value through profit and loss' (FVTPL],
‘Fair value through other comprehensive income' {EVTOUI). The classification depends on the Coimzany's business maodel for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of cash Aows

Debt Instrument

Amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective < ta hood the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dstes to cash flows that zre solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amouat outstanding, This category generallv appliss t¢ trade and other recavables, |

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! If both of the following criteria are mel;

a)The objective of the business model i achieved botn by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financia: 2ssets.

bThe asset’s contractual cash ficws represent sclely payments of grincipsl and interest

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured nitially as well a5 at each repoiting date al far value, Fair valus movements
are recognized in the other sompiehensive income (OC)). However, the Company recognizes nterest income, impairment (osses o reversals and
forelgh exchange gain or loss b the staterneric of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cemulative gain or ioss previously recognised in OC! ",,.-F';{';'I‘T‘:—
is reclassified from the equity to statemen: of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCH delbt instrument is reporied as interest income f'"x‘\"—:“:__}’"
using the EIR method. i




c

(i)

{iv)

(v

{vi}

{ €) Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTeL}

i}
ii)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debl instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost ar
as FWTOC, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate v debt nstrument, which coisrwise meets amortized cost or
FVWTOC! criteria, as at FYTPL However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred o as ‘accounting mismatch’),

Debt instruments included within the AVTPL category are measured at fair Jalue with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Equity investments

The Company measures aquity investments other than its subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss Where the Comaany's management has
elected to present fair valiz gains and losses on =quity Investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of tair
value gains and losses to statement of profit and less. Dividends from such investmants are recognised in statement of profit and loss 2+ ather
incame when the Company’s Fight ta receive pavment is established.

§ t in subsidiaries, joini and associates

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carmed at cost less ympairment loss in accordar. » with IND AS 27 on "Separate
Financial Statements”

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when :

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the asset or the rights have expired or

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the finavcal asset, hut assumes a contractual obligation ro pay the cash
fiows to one or more recipients in an arrangemant

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantally all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financiai assef is derecognised. Where the antity has no* rransferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, tne financiai asset is not derecognised.

Impairment of financial assats

The Company measures the expected cradit foss associated with its assets based on historical trend, Industry practices and the business
emviornment in which th= entity operates or any other aporopriate basis. The impairment methodelogy applisd depends on whetnor thzie nas
heen a significant increase in credil risk,

Financial liabliities and equity instrunents

Dabt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity i accordance with the substance of the
countractusl arrangements and the dofinitions of a firancial liability and an 2guity irsirument.

Equity instrumentis

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its aabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company av2 recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Repuirchase of the Company's cwn equity instruments is rezagnised and deducted directly in equity. Mo gain or loss is recognised on the p-chase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's owr equity instruments,

Expected oredit loss ¢

The company app'ies exvected credit losses (ECL) madel for measurement and recogmition of lows allowance on the fotlowing.

ij Trade receivables

i) Financial assets measured at 2martised cost {other than trade receivables)

Financial essets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income {SWTGC)

in case of rade receivables, the coimpary follows a siraplified approach wherein an amount equ=! to lifetime ECL measured and recognised s loss
allowance. Loss allowarnces for irade receivable are always measurec 2t an ams.or aqual to litetime expected credit losses. UfLnme sxpected
credit losses are the expectad crediu osses that result from all possible default avents over the expected life of o Tinancial Insuumee it 12 month
expacted cren:t losses are the portion < expecied ciedit losses that result from default events thai are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date {or a shorter perind if the expected iite of the instrument s less then 12 manthe

{n case of other assets, the company determines if there has been a significant increased in cradit risk of the financial assets since initial recognition.
if the credit risk of such assets has not in il

reased significantly, an amount equal to 12 months ECL is measured and recog d as loss e
However, if cradit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to ifetime EC! = measured and recognised as loss allowance.

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities

Financiai liabllities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arengerents

entered into anc the definitions of a financial dabilitv and an equity ‘nstrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting ali of its liabilities. Eguity

instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the procesds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments woich-are issued for

consideration othar than cash are recorded at fali value of the equity instrument

Financial labilities Subsequ=nt Measurement

Financial liabilities measurad at amoriised cost:

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amnertized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and

toss when the liabilities are derecognized as weli as thraugh the EIR amortzation process. Amortized cost 1s calculated by taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition snd fee or cosis that are an integral part of the CIR. The £If wmertization i Inciudad in finsnce costs in tha

statement of profit and loss

Financial liabilties measured at fair value througn profit and loss (FYTPL -

Firancial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities heid for rading and financial ilabllities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Derivatic s, including separated
Sedded derivatives are classified as heid for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging inciruments. Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit and loss are carried in the financial statements at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in other income or finance =.sts in

the statement of profic and loss

Derecognition of financial liabilities :

A financial liabiiity is derecopnized when the obligation under the hability is discharg=a or cancelied or expires. When an existing financtal liability is

replaced by another from tie same lende: on substzatialty differont terms, or the terms of 50 sxisting liability are substantially movified, such an

exchange or mocification Is treated as the derecognition of the original hability and the recognition ot a new liability. The difference in the

respective carrying amounts is recognized in the staterrnent of profit and 1oss.

Determination of faii value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset er paid to transfer a liability in a0 ordinary transaction between market participants at

the measurcment date

In determining the fair value of its financial Instruments the Company uses a variety of metheds and sssumptions that are based on market

conditions and risks existing at each reporiing date. The methods used to determine fair valué include discountad casn flow analysis and available

quoten market prices, All methods of aszessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such vaiue may never actually be realize

Borrowings and borroying casts
Borrowings are initially recognisad at ret of Gansaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the prore (net
of transaction coses) and the redemption amaunt is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the horrowings using the EIR.

Borrowing cosis attributable to the acquisition i construction of qualifying 3ssers till the tme such assets are ready for Intenden use are
capitalisod as part of cost of the assets. 4l! other borrowing costs are expensed in the periard they ooour
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Provisions, contingent liakilities and contingent assets i

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event =xists and It is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying econumic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such oblization can be reliably
estimated, °

A disclosure for a contingent-liability s made when there is a possible obligation or a present-cbligation that may, but probably will fot require an
outflow of resoufces embodying econormic bengfits or'the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible
ohligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or

disclosure is made. .
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, however they are disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits is probable,

When the realisation of income s virtually certain, then the related asset is no loriger a contirigent asset and is recognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Cormpany and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue i measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Afl revenues are accounted on accrual basis except to the extent
stated otherwise. e

Lease income is recognised as per the agreed terms of the lease agreement.

Sales is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership are passed onto the customers, which s generally on dispatch or agreed
terms,

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is estaniished.

Revenue from other services are recognised as and when such services are completed/performed.

l t and other I benefits
Short-term benefits
Short-term employee b are recognized as an exp at the undiscounted amounl in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which
the related services are rendered. Expenses on non-sccumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the absences ocrur,

Fil

Defined benefit plans

a) Post-employment and other long-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the st nt of profit and loss for the year in which
the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the present value of the amount payable determined vsing actuarial valuation
techniques.

b) Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets {excluding interest)
and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest] are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined cortribution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the contribution to
the respective funds are due. There zre no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the fund )

Leave entitlement and compensated absences

Accumulated l=ave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as short-term empioyee benefit. Leave entitlement, other
than short rerm compensated absences, are provided based on a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gzins and losses, in respect of leave entitlernent are recognised In the statement of profit and loss in the period in which
they occus.

Transactions in foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (*T°).

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rate prevaiting on the date of such transactions.

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on
settlernent of monetary items or on reporting such monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
period, er reported in previous financial statements are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Mon-manetary foreign currency items are carried at historical cost and translated at the exchange rate prevelant at the date of the transaction.

Accounting for taxes on income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for @ period. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized
at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financlal statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit {tax loss). Deferred tax is determined using tax
rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacied by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the reiated
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability Is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be availabie ta utilise those femporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaliy enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax labilities are offset where the entity has a fegally
enforceable right to affset and intends either to settle on a net bas:s, or to realise the asset 2nd settle the iiability simultaneously.

Presentation of current 2nd deferred tax

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the statement of profit and loss, except 1o the extent they relate to items
recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and deterred tax income [ expense are recognised In other comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount exceads its recaverabie value. The recoverable amount Is the
greater of an asset's or cash generating unit's, net selling price and vaiue In use, In assessing vaiue in use, the astimated furure cash fiows are
discounted to the present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific
to the assets. An impairment loss is charged to the siatement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset |s (dentified as Impaired. After
|mpuir|nen:t, depreciation s provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remairng useful life. The impairment loss recogmzed in
priar accounting periods is reversed by crediting the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate ¢f recoverable amount,

Financiai guarantee contract




Financial guarantee contract are recogniced 5 3 financial lisbility at the time the guarantee is issued, The liability s Initially measured at fair value
and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with IND AS - 37, Proviuion, contigent liahilities and contingent assets and
the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

Earnings per share

Bastc earnings per share 15 computed and disclosed using tne weighted average number of equity shures outstanding during the period. Dilutive
sarnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares cutstanding during
the period, except when the results would be anti-dilutive.

Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or befare the end of the reporting period but remaining undistributed at the end of
the reporting period, where the same has been appropriately authorised and 1s na longer at the discretion of the entity.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to tae issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net af tax, from the proceeds.

Excaptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type, or incidences of the itern of incame or expenses perfaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such that
its disclosure improves the undetstanding of the performance of the Company, surh income or expenses s classified as an exceptional item anc
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statemenis.

Critical accounting judg and estimat

The preparation of financiz! statements reguires management fo exercise judgment in appiying the Campany’s sccounting paticies. it also reguires
the use of =stimates and assumprions that affect the reperted amounts of asscts, labilities, income and exponses and the accomianying
disclosures inciuding disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying asscmptions are
‘eviewed on an cngoing basis, with revisions recognised in the periad in which the e-ninates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Contingencies

in the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabiliues that have
a low probabiiity of crystallisiig or are very difficult Lo quantify reliably, are treated as conting=nt liatilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the
notes but are not provided !or in the tinancial statements. There can be na assurance regarding the final outcome of these legal proceedings,

Useful lives and residual values

The Company reviews the usetul lives and residuai vaiues of property, plant and equipment and intanglble assets at each financial year end.
Impairment testing

impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed are based or assumptions about risk of default and expected joss rates. The Company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impawrment calculation, based on the Company's past history, exsting
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

impairment o non-financial assets

impairment exists when the carrying valua of an assat or cash generating unit (LG} exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calcuiation is based on available data from oinding sales
transactions, condurted at arm’s length, for similar assets or obsesvaple market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in
use caiculation is based on a DCF modet, The cash flows are derived from the budges for the future years and do not include restructuning activities
that the Company s nat yet committed to of significant future investments that wiill enhance the asset's performance of the CGU baing tested. The
recoverabie amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF modei as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate,

Income Taxes

The Company’s tax charge (5 the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the Company’s total fax charge necessarily
involves & degree of estimation and judgment In respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has
been reached with the relevant Lax authaority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. *

Accruals for tax contingencies require manag to make jud 1ts and esti in relation to tax related issues and exposures.

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether L is mare likely than aat that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be avet sble in
the future agsinst which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. Where the temporary differences are reiated to losses, the
avarability of the losses to offset against forecast taxable profits is also considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the future
financial performance of the particular 1egal entity or tax Company in which the deferred tax asset has been recognized.

Fair valuz measurement

‘The fair value of financial instrurnents that are not traded in an active market is oetermined using valuation technigues. In applying the valuation
techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possibie, consistent with
ohtervable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrumant. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These astimates may viry “rom the acturl prices that would be achieved in
an arm's length transacricn ai the reporting date.

Defined benefit obligation

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment benefits are cnarged tu the staternent of orofit znd lass in accordance with Ind AS 19
‘Employee benefits' over the period during which benefit = derived from the employees’ services, The costs are assessed on the basis of
assumgtions selected by the managament. These assumptions include salary ascalation rate, discount ztes, expected rate of return on assets and
mortality rates. The same 15 disciosed In Note 36-, ‘Employee benefits’.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determing the leasa terrm as the non-cancallable period of a lease adjusted with sny option to extend or terininate
the lease, if the use ot such option fs reasonably certain. The Conpany makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-iease basis
and thereby hether it is r bly certain that any options tn extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease
term, the Company considers factors such as any significant ieasshold improveinents undertaken aver the lease term, costs relating to tha
termination of the'lease and the importance of the underlving asset to the Company's operations and the availabiiity of suitable alternatives. The
|ease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Recent acc 5 P
Ministry of Corporate Affairs [“MCA"} not'fies new standard or amendments o the existing standards under Companies (Indlan Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA Las not notified any new standards or amengments ta the
existing standards apphicabie to the Company




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes farming part of the financial statements

(T in lakhs)
L Furniture & . .
Description of Assets Free hold land Building Bt Office Equipment Computer Total
3 Investment property
I. Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2022 642.31 23,135.71 733.08 546.34 21045 25,267.89
Additions - - - 22.05 13.86 3591
Disposals - = = = = =
As at 31 March 2023 642.31 23,135.71 733.08 568.39 22431 25,303.80
Additions - 30,392.77 = - = 30,392.77
Disposals - - = - = ™
As at 31 March 2024 642.31 53,528.48 733.08 568.39 22431 55,696.57
I. Depreciation upto 01 April 2022 = 4,301.87 404.60 431.16 163.21 5,300.84
Depreciation charge for the year - 869.68 70.23 18.08 9.15 967.14
Disposals = = = - = 3
Upto 31 March 2023 - 5,171.54 474.83 4459.24 172.36 6,267.98
Depreciation charge for the year - 873.81 63,52 9.26 10.38 956.97
Disposals = E - - = -
Upto 31 March 2024 - 6,045.35 538.35 458.50 182,74 7,224.95
Net book value
As at 31 March 2024 642,31 47,483.12 194.73 109.89 4157 48,471.61
As at 31 March 2023 642.31 17,964.16 258.24 119.16 51.95 19,035.82
Fair value
As at 31 March 2024 2,268.75 47,483.12 194,73 109.89 4157 50,098.06
As at 31 March 2023 2,268.75 37,124.05 258.24 113.16 5185 39,822.14
Net book value 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investment Property 48,471.61 15,035.82
Capital work-in-progress 3,213.95 32,719.88
Details of Capital work-in-progress
(¥ Lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 32,719.88 31,794.85
Add : Addition during the year 886.84 1,680.25
Less : Capitalized during the year 30,392.77 755.22
Closing balance 3,213.95 32,719.88
Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for balance as at 31 March 2024 (T Lakhs)
Capital work-in-progress Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 110.39 177.44 171.28 2,754.84 3,213.95
Projects temporarily suspended - = _ = 5
Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for balance as at 31 March 2023 (T Lakhs]
Capital work-in-progress Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 925.03 914.22 1,041.71 29,838.92 32,719.88

Projects temporarily suspended

Note:

The fair value of the Company's investment property has been arrived by the management on the basis of a appropriate ready reckoner value. The fair value measurement is

categorised as Level 3.




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(¥ in lakhs)
Description of Assets Right of Use Total
4 Right of Use
I. Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2022 2,216.46 2,216.46
Additions during the year - -
Disposals during the year 59.61 58.61
As at 31 March 2022 | 2,156.85 2,156.85
Additions during the year ! -
Disposals during the year ' 4354 43.54
i
As at 31 March 2024 2,113.31 | 2,113.31
Il. Amortization upto 01 April 2022 110.12 110.12
Amortisation for the year 31.72 31.72
Disposal 0.49 0.49
i
upto 31 March 2023 { 141.35 141.35
Amortisation for the year | 31.72 31.72
Disposal i -
Upto 21 March 2024 173.07 173.08
|
Net book value [
As at 31 March 2024 i 1,940.24 1,940.24
As at 31 March 2023 I 2,015.50 ] 2,015.50
Net book value 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Right of use 1,940.24 | 2,015.50




DIGITAL VEMTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes forming part of the finanoial statements For the year ended 31 March 2024

-
(¥ i lakhs)
Description of Assets Development rights Software Total
5 Intangible assets
|. Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2022 5,176.84 13.47 5,190.32
Additions during the year - -
Dispnsals during the year
As at 31 March 2023 5,176.84 R 13.49 5,190.32
Additions during the year 5,250,090 5,250.00
Disposais during the year -
As at 31 March 2024 - 15At6.84 | 13.48 10,440.32
Ii. Amortization upto 01 April 2622 1,052.04 2.1 1,064.75
Amortisation for the year 20918 | 223.16
Dizposal ‘
A— !
upto 21 March 2023 1,281.20 : 12.71 - 1,233.91
Amorssation for the year 23000 T 230.00
Disposal -
upto 31 March 2024 1,511.20 12.71 1,523.91
Met book value
Ay at 31 March 2024 2515.64 ! a7 l 8,916.41
As at 31 March 2023 2,895 64 | o | 3,895.41
Met buok value 31March2024 | 31 March 2023
I
intangible Aszets i B,21641 ¢ 3,896.41 ¢
i ]
Intangible Assets under Developiment { 5,250.00 |
Detaiis of 'ntangibie Assets under Development
[# Laikns)
31 March 2024 31 Merch2023 |
Opening baiance 5,250.00 5,250 00
Add : Addition during the year : =
Less : Capitalized during the year 5,250.00 i 1
|Closing halance - 5,250.00 |
Intangible ussets under devel ageing schedule fur balance as at 31 March 2024 R Lakhs}
lintangible assets under development Amount in Intangible ascts under development for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More nan 3 vears
Projects in progress - - -
Projects temporarily suspended -
Intangible assets unaer dovelopment ageing scheduie for balance as at 31 March 2023 (¥ Lakhs)
lintangible assets under development Amgcunt in Intangible zssets under develoament for a period of Total l
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 1
Frojects i progress - = 5,250.00 5,250.00 l
Prajects tlemporarily suspended 2 -]
*Develapments rights is a {ij right to execute development work. (i} fight to set up, rin, operate and adminisiar. and manage the schoel, institutes and units set up on the allocaiad
plot and undertake other ancillary operations in accordanze with the terms of this Agreernents; (4] the firs. sgnt to r2ceive all funds, receivables, revenues, protits and ather incomes

in respect of the operations of the schoal, institutes and Units rrom all parties 10 accordance with terms of arrangement oetween parties.

**Expenses incurred for execution of work as per terms of arrangement unoer develoy ‘nent nghts yet to b2 ready to use is shown 3s intangibie assets under devaiopmant,




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial-staternents for the year ended 31 March 2024

(¥ in lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
6 Loans
Loans (Unsecured) 7,131.36 6,798.91 -
Less: Allowances for doubful loan (4,858.63) {4,858.63)
Total 2,272.73 1,940.28 - -
(Zin lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 g 31 March 2023
7  Other Financial Assets ;
Deposits - unsecured and considered good
-to others 38.64 36.32 -
Total 38.64 36.32 - -
(¥ in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
& Non-turrent tax assets (net)
Balances with government authorities
- direct taxes {net of provisions) 1,600.49 1,648.64
Total 1,600.49 1,648.64
(T in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3 Deferred tax assets {net)
The components of deferred tax balances are as under:
Deferred tax Iiabi!lties
Depreciation and amortization 9.01
- (9.01)
Mat Credit Entitlement i
Deferred tax assets / {liabilities) - {9.01)
(Zin lakhs)
Mon - Current Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
10 Other assets

Capital advances (unsecured)

Less. Allowances for doubful Capital advan
Prepaid Expenses
Mobilisation advances
' -to related parties

Less: Allowances for doubful mobiliasation
Corporate guarantee premium

Total

617.06 622.75 .
(617.C6) < -
“ - 8.43 8.79
§34.00 834.00 - .
(834.00) - ;
174.11 174.11 E E
8.43




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes farming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

¥ in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
11 Trade receivables (unsecured)
- considered good 1,875.25 1,676.51
- Which has significant increase in credit risk 5,996.37 5,596.37
7,87L62 7,672.88
Less : Allowances for credit impaired receivables [5,996.37). {5,996.37)
Total 1,875.25 1,676.51
a For transactions relating to related party receivables, rafer note 37
b Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.
Trade receivables ageing as at 31 March 2024 (T in lakhs)
Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not dug Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years Mo;:r:" 2 Total
(I} |Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good = 881.36 834,94 108,95 - 1,875.25
(i} |Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in eredit risk - - 2,776.66 3,218.71 5,996.37
Less : Allowances for eredit impaired receivables - - |2,776.66) [3,219.71) (5,996.37)
Tatal = 881,36 884.94 108.95 - 1,875.25
Trade receivables ageing as at 31 March 2023 (T in lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years MU::::':" 2 Totai
(i} |undisputed Trade receivables - cansidered good - 884.94 791.57 - - 1,676.51
(i} {Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - 2,094.04 3,205.25 697.08 5,996.37
Less; Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - {2,094.04) [3,205.25) {69708} |5,996.37)
Taotal = 854,94 791.57 - - 1,676.51
(% in lakhs)
Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
12 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 101,79 45.96
Cash in hand i
Total 101.79 45.96
T




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LUMITED

Notes forming part of the Finaicial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(% in lakhs)
31 Mar 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars

13 Equity Shara Capital

Authorised *
5,110,000 {5,110,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- each 511.00 511.00
511.00 511.00
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up
5,010,000 {5,010,600)Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 501.00 501.00
Total 501.00 501.00
* authorised capital of ¥ 1,000,000 (T 1,000,000} Redeemabie Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- (¥ 10/-) each is not considered above
Redeemable preference shares issued have been considered as borrawings in accordance with the requirement of ind AS 32, )
(a} Reconciliation of number of shares and share capital
L 31 Mar 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shar, 2
quity shares Number of Equity # Lakhs Number of Equity 2 Lakhs
Shares Shares
jm the beginning of the year 50,10,000 502.00 50,310,000 501.00
1Add ' Issue of Shares Equity Shares of T 10 /- Each Fully Paid - - 4 £ <
OQutstanding at the end of the year i 50,10,00¢ | 501.00 | 50,10,000 501.00

(b)  Terms/ rights attached to Equity shares & Preference shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 sach. Each helder of equity shares is entitled to one vote par share. The said eguity shares 2re entitled to dividend as and
when company declares and is paid in Indian Rupees. The dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Diractors 1s subject to the approval of the shereholders in the ensuing Annual Generdl

Maeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in praportion to the number of equity shares held oy the shareholders.

(c) Details of aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years r: eceading 31 March, 2018

The company has not Issued any shares for consideratian orher than cash till date. No shares are bought b7 ck and no bueaus shares were issued during the rariod of preceding five years,

(d) Detalis of Eguity Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the aggregate shares in the Company

| 31 Miar 2024 31 iarch 3023
l Namz of Sharcholders i
Shareholdi % Shareholdi
L ) Number of shares Hesharehoding Number of shares o e
| Zee Learn Limited 50,10,C00 100%, 50,10,000 1003
i { The Holding company ! |

As per the records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received froomn shareholders regardig beneficial interest, the sbove shareholding

represents both legal and beneficlal ownership of shares.

{T in lakhs)
31 Mar 2024 31 March 2023
14 Instrumants entirely equity in nature
11,324,045 (11,324,045) 0.01% Compulsorily Canvertible Debentires of Rs. 100/- (Rerer Below Note 11 11,332.77 11,3315 5
11,332.77 11,331.75

0.01 %, Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCD) of ¥ 100 each fully pald up issued to Zee Learn Limited (Holding Company) are compulsorily convertible into eguity shares at a conversiun rate
to be decided based on fair value of equity shaces any time from the date of sliotment but not later than 10 years fram the date of allotment.
by, g
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DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 '

(T in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
15 Other equity
Securities premium
As per last Balance Sheet 19,662.00 19,662.00
Addition/{Deletion) during the year -
19,662.00 19,662.00
Capital contribution from holding company
As per last Balance Sheet 860.67 860.67
Addition/(Deletion) during the year -
860.67 £60.67
Equity component of optionally convertible debentures
As per last Balance Sheet
Addition/(Deletion) during the year 6,231.48 6,231.48
6,231.48 6,231.48
Retained earnings ?
Opening Balance (13,518.27) (1,251.00)
Add : Profit for the year (2,248.74) (12,268.26)
Add : Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 1.00 '
Less: Dividend on 0.1% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - {0.01)
{15,767.01) {13,518.27)
Total 10,987.14 13,235.88

1)

2)
3)
4)

Movement of 0.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs}

As at 31 Mar 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Opening Balance 11,901.85 .
Total proceeds received during the year - -
Less : Equity component of OCDs - 6,231.48
Liability component of OCDs - 5,347.41
Add : Interest expenses accrued till 31 March 2024 456.29 323.06
Balance as at the end of the year 12,358.24 11,901.95

Equity component of opticnally convertible debentures represents 115,788,924, 0.01% Optionally Convertible Debentures of¥ 10 each

Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisons uf the Companies Act, 2013.
Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings, net of losses if any, made by the Company over the years
Capital Contribution from Holding Company is the Fair vaiue of Financial guarantee issued by Holding Company.




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(¥ in lakhs)
Non-Current Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
16 Borrowings
Secured
Term loan from banks (Refer note {iv) below) 10,503.79 9,933.87 3,092.50 3,092.50
Unsecured
100,000 {100,000) 0.1% Non-Convertible Mon-C) lative Red: ble Prefi Shares of 10/- each fully paid
up at a premium of 10,705/- per share (Refer note (i) below) 10.00 10.00 - -
115,788,924 (NI} 0.01%, Optionally Convertible Det of 10/- each (Refer note (i) below) 6,126.77 5,670.47 -
Intercorparate Depasits (Refer note (i) below) 10,932.05 10,932.05 - -
[(Including interest 6406.83 T/lakhs,{6406.83 T/lakhs)|
Tatal 27,572.61 26,546.33 3,002.50 3,092.50
{I} MNon Convertible Non C fath | bl f e Shares
The Company has only ane class of 0.1% Non Col ble Mon C i i le Pr Shares lssued ta Zee Learn Limited which will be redeemable anytime at the request of the

investor on or before 31st March 2027 at a premium of Rs. 11,405 per share. In case of early redemption the premium will be decided by mutual cansent on the date of redemption.

(i) Optionally G e Dk

During the previous year, Company had converted outstanding unsecured loan (including interest thereen) into 0,01 %, Unsecured Unrated Unlisted Optionally Canvertible Debentures (0CD) of%
10 each at par value amounting to %/lakhs 11,578.89 for non cash consideration, with the conversion tenure of 10 years at the ontion of the issuer or OCD holder to be excercised any time during
the tenure and shall be convertible into Equity shares of T 10 each at issue price of ¥ 17,36 per Equity shares, thus 1000 OCD of T 10 each shall be convertible into 576 Equity shares of % 10 each
at premium of X 7.36 per share, Further any OCD not converted into Equity shares at the end of the tenure shall be redeemed at par value,

(i) Intercorporate Deposits - Unsecured

As per the terms agreed, financial assistance to the extent of T250 Crores towards Intercorporate Deposits(ICD) is to be recelved from Zee Learn Limited (The Holding Campany) which carries an
Interest rate of 12.5% p.a and is repayable by 31 March 2025, Till 31 March 2025 the company has received the ICD of ¥ 10932.05 Crores,

{iv] Term Loans from Banks

2

a) Term laan from Axis Bank Limited T/lakhs 10875.63 (/lakhs- 10418.59) [including interest accrued T/lakhs 3356.19 (T/lakhs 2357.78) carries interest @ bank's base plus spread of 2.65% p.a viz.,
12.90% p.a. The loan repayable In 37 quarterly installments begining from 4th year |.e. Financial year 2018, The overdue amount of loan as at 31 March 2024 are given in note v below.

b} Term loan from Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited T/lakhs 2720.66 (T/lakhs 2607.38) [including interest accrued ¥lakhs 839,10 (7/lakhs 580.37} carrles interest @ bank's base plus spread of
2.65% p.a viz, 12.90% p.a. The loan repayable in 37 quarterly instaliments begining from 4th year i.e. Financial year 2018. The overdue amaunt of oan as at 31 March 2024 are given in note v

below,

¢} The above loan are secured by first charge on afl present and future E ble and i gible assets of the BKC School Projects, the entire current assets of the BEC Schoaol Project,
including first charge on afl the escrow accounts and TRAs held by TALEEM and subsidalry campany for the projects, as well as assignment of insurance policies taken for the Project with the Bank
as lass payee, all present and future rights, titles and Interests of the Project from all contracts, insurances, documents, which Campany is party to including contractor guarantees, liquidated
damages and all other contracts or letter of credit, guarantee, performance bond pravided by any party te company and registered mortgage on lease hold land of the project. THe loan is
collaterally secured by corporate guarantee from halding company and pledge of 51% shares held by the Zee Learn Limited in company subject to adherence to Banking Ragulation Act, 1943, to
be held pari passu with RTUI (T/lakhs 102.21 Cr)

Details of continuing defaults 2sat 31 March 2024
Principal

Lender (% In Lakhs} Due Date Delay Days Remarks
i Bank Limited- Term laan Opeining, ' 1357.82 2365 Unpaid
Axls Bank Limited- Term loan 350,00 S-06-2003 ms Unpaid
" |awis pank Limited- Term loan asapa|  30.09-2003 10 Unpaid
s Bank Limited- Term loan 350.00 31123023 a1 Unpid
Axis Barik Limited- Term loan 35000 11032024 1 Unpaid
hed- B 33766 3165 Wnpaid,
Taenilral Mercantile Bark Limited- Tarm foan 87540 30062003 s Unpald
Tarmilnad Mercantila Bank Limited- Term [nan 8750 30-05-2003 183 Unpaid
[Tamiinad Mercantis Bank Limted- Term loan L5750 3-12-2003 a Ursaid
Taminad Marcantite Bank Limnited- Term loan &7.50 31032024 1 ngaid




fah

Interost

Lender 1% in Lakhs| Duse Date Dty Diys Remarks
furis Bank Limited- Term Inan Opeining 126237 2365 Unpaid
s Bank Limited- Term loan 9542 01-04-2023 285 Unpaid
a5 Fiank Limited- Term laan 8125 01-05-2023 15 Unpaig
tudis Bank Limited: Term loan .05 01-06- 3023 I Ungaid
s Darik Limited- Term loan £2.95 D-07-2013 m Unpaid
Asls Bonk Lidted- Term loan B¢ 01408-7093 243 Unpuzid
ks Bank Linsitied- Term lgan B5.16 01082003 12 Unpaid
s Bank Limited- Term taan 8227 01-10-2023 182 Unpaid
s Bk Limited- Terrn faan ETEY 01-11-2023 51 Ungaid
[ uels Bank Linitad- Tarm loan B0.55 01132023 m Urgiaid
Al Barik Limited- Term logn il O1-01-2024 L] Unpaid
focks Bank Limdted- Term loan BL7E 01-02-2004 59 Unpaid
| s Bank Limited- Term laan 36 01-03-2024 n Unpaid
[Tamilad Mercartie Bark Limited- Term loan Opeining 566,43 2355 Unnaid
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited- Term loan 8 01042023 s Uranaid
Tamiinad Mercantile Bank Limited- Term loan .08 1-05-2013 EELS Ungaid
(Tamilnad bercantile Bank Umited- Term iaar 8 O1-06-2013 304 Unpaid
Tamilned Mercantde Bank Limited- Term loan 06 01.07-2023 7 Unpaid
Tamiinad Mercantile Sank Limited- Teom |osn nm 01.08.2023 3 Uspald
Tamilnad fercantile Bank Limited. Term loan nat 01-05-2013 212 Ungakd
Tamilnsd Mercantite Bank Limited- Term laan 2058 a1-10-2003 182 Unpaid
Famélnad Marcantile Bank Limited- Term losn 2136 01112023 51 Unpaid
Tamiinad Mercantile Bank Limited- Tarm loan 045 01132023 i Ungald
| Tomilnod Mercantile Bank Limited- Term laan .83 1-08-2024 50 Unpaid
Tamilnad Mercantiia Bank Limited. Term lan LB a102-2004 58 Unpaid
Tamilnad Mercantile Bark Limited- Term loan 1936 01-03-2004 n Unpali
Dietails of continuing defaults as at 31 March 2023
Principal

Lender % in Lakhs) Due Date Datay Days Remarks
o Bk Limvited- Tarm loan 9959 11-12-2021 455 Ungsid
| Aus ank Limitad- Tarm laan 30000 31-03-2017 365 Unpaid
| Axis Bank Limited- Term loan £l 30-06-2022 m Unpaid
s Bank Limited- Term loan 300.00 30-09- 2002 1|2 Unpaid
(Al Biardk Limited- Term losn 30.00 a0 sa Unazd
tocks Bank Uimbted: Term loan 300.00 31-03-2023 1 Unpaid
Tomilnad Mertantie Bank Limited- Term laan 731 31-12-2011 455 Uapaid
(Taménad Marcartite Rank Linited- Term loan 75.00 non 355 Unpald
Tamiinad Mercantile Bank Limtad- Tarm losn 75.00 30-06-2022 278 Ungadel
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited- Tarm loan 75.00 10-08-2022 182 Ungaid
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Uimited- Term taan 7500 3-12-2007 50 Unpaid
[ Tamilnad Marcantia Bank Limited- Term loan T500 31-03-200% 1 Unpaid




L]

Intgrest

Lender {%in Lakhs) Duz Date Delay Days Aemarks
[fucis Bank Limited: Term loan 110.82 01-04-2021 Erid Unpaid
[#cels Bank LimAted- Term losn 9234 01052071 2] Unpaid
ks Bank Lamitad- Term loan 9541 01-06-2001 BER Unpaid
s Bank Limlted- Term loan 5234 D1-07-2021 638 Unpaid
#ais Hanik Limited: Term loan 95.42 TH-0E-2021 &07 Unpaid
ais Hank Limited- Term laan 95,42 01083071 576 Unpaid
fuels Bank Limited- Term lasn 2,34 01-10-2051 546 Ungaid
el Banlk Limisid- Tarm losn a5.42 01-11-2001 515 Unpaid
[ #uils Bank Limited: Term loan a234 01122021 485 Unpatd
s Bank Limited- Term loan 8542 01.01-2002 454 Unpaid
#os Bank Limited- Term loan 9542 01-02-2022 ani Unpald
s Barik Limited- Tarm loan BE1E 01-03-2022 335 Unpaid
s Banik Limitad- Tarm laan 95.42 01-04-2022 364 Ursnaic)
Axis Bank Limited- Term loan 9234 a1-05-2012 m Ungiated
s Bank Limized- Term loan a5.42 01-06-2002 03 Unpaid
tucks Bank Limited- Term loan 9234 01072022 73 Unpaid
s Bank Limited- Term loan 95.42 1082022 47 Unpaid
i Bank Limitad- Tarm toan 9542 01-09-2072 R Unpaid
s Bank Limized: Term laan 234 a1:10.2092 181 Unpakd
s ek Lirmited- Term loan 25,42 01-11-2022 10 Unpaid
s Bk Limnitedd- Termn loan 52,34 D1-12-2022 10 Unpaic
 axfs Bank Limited- Term loan L H 01-01-3073 L) Unpaid
| sl Bank Limited- Term laan 95.42 01-02-2083 58 Ungaid
Axis Bank Limited- Term faan B6.18 21-03-2023 0 Unpaid
Tamilrad Mercantile Sank Limited. Torm loan e 01.08-2021 T4 Unpaid
| Tamilnad Murcantile Bank Umited- Term loan B2 01-05-2021 633 Unpald
Tamifnad Adercantile Eank Umited- Term koan 389 11-06-2021 668 Unnaid
Tamilnad Mercantile Dank Limited- Term losn 112 01-07-2001 538 Ungud
Tamilnad Mereantie Bani Limited- Term loan bA T ) 01.08-2071 &7 Unpaid
Tamiinad Mercantile Bank Limited- Tere loan 13.89 01.08-2021 576 Unpaig
Tamdlnad Mercantile Bank Umited- Term tgan 312 01-10-2021 546 Unpaid

Bank Lmited- Term laan 2189 01-11-2001 515 Unasid
Familnad Mercanta Rank Linited- Term o 112 01-12-2071 485 Urgaaicl
Tamnilnad Mercantile Bank Limited- Term loan pEN.] a1-01-2097 454 Ungaid
Tamiilnad Mercantile Bank Limited- Torm loan 13.89 01-02-2022 a Unpald
| Tarvsinad Mercantile Bank Uimited- Term loan nse 01-03-2022 395 Unnaid
Tamilnad sdercantile Bank Umited- Term losn 188 01-04-2022 364 Ungsid
Taemilrad Mercantile Bank Liméted- Term loan 1B a1-05-2002 a4 Unpaid
Tamilnad Mereartie Sank Limited- Term Inan FEE] 01-06-2002 303 Unpald
Tamilnad Mereantily Sand Limitid- Teren loan 11 01-07-2022 3 Unpald
[ Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Umited- Tere loan 2189 01-08-2022 42 Unpaid
[Tomilnad Mercantile Bank Umited. Term loan 1189 082032 m Unasicd
Tamilmad Marcantile Bank Umited- Term loan 342 a1-10-2072 1 Unpusid
'l:nmmMﬂmﬂuMuml!nd-Temlom pER-] 01-11-2002 150 Unpaid
Tamilnad Mercartite fank Limited. Term loan naz 01-12-2022 110 Unpaid
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited- Term loan 1389 010172023 & Unpald
Tamsinad Mercantile Bank Linited- Term loan 1189 01-02-2023 sa Unipald
Tamiload Mercantile Bank Limited- Term loan .58 01-03-2023 0 Ungaid




(% in lakhs)

I Mon-Current Currant
| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17 Financial liabilities-Others |
Fremlum on redemption of Preference snares ] 1,423.00 1,283.00
Capital Expenditure - - 67252 629.22
Dieposits received - Others 1,220.87 1,085.81 - -
Total 1,220.87 1,085.81 2,095.52 1,912.22
(¥ in lakhs)
Non-Current 13 Current
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 3i March 2024 31 March 2023
18 Lease Liability
Lease Liality 245566 |  2,303.88 5218 S7.00
Touwl 2.455.66 2,303.88 | 52.19 57.00
(T in lakhs)
] Mon-Current Current :
| 3imnarcn 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 hdarch 2024 | 31 March 2023 |
18 Provisions T [ I
|
Provision for employee benefits ! 'I'
¢ Gratuity 0,20 : 005 ¢ -
- Leave bevefits | 120 - s !
i | §
Total | 9.42 - | 0.30 |
(T in lakns)
[ Non-Current | Current
| 31Maich2024 | 31March2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
20 Other liabilities ; |
Deferred deposit | 8,604.55 | 5,761.04 45524 45534
Dividend payable |_ g - - .01
Statutory dues payable 1 - 2751 95.82
Orher labiiities | = I - 1559] 17.43
Total | B,804.55 | 3,261.04 493,34 568.50




DIGITAL VENTURS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for tne year enced 21 March 2024

- (% in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21 Revenue from operations
Lease rent l 1,204.99 1,203.74
Professional Fees I &
Total 1,204.33 1,203.74
(¥ in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
22 Other income
(]
Interest income 1CD i 330.50 94,24
. interest income Bank Deposit | 373
Unwinding of discount on interest free deposit : 232 2.06
Interest un Compound Financial Instrument i 116 0.87
Miscellaneaus lncome E 10,04 -
Toral| 848.15 797.17
(¥ in iakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
22 Empioyee benefits
Salary and Wages 559 5.09
Cantributior: to provident and other funds | 041 0.23
Total| 7.00 5.32
X in .ashs)
| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
24 Finance tosts | 1
|
Irterest on |
- term loan ! £23.57 702.40 1
Compuiscrily Convertibie Debentures - 113 1.13
- ‘nter Corparate Leposits 675.47
- Uptionally Caonvertible Debentures ! il 087
- Lease 226.89 125.86
- Unwinaing of discount on interest free deposit 13507 118.82
ds- Others 0.08 L1 ED
Unwinding of discount on financial liahilities
- Optionaily Convertible Debentures 456.41 32314
Other financial charges - 0.03
Total 1,444.31 1,966.562
(T in lakhs)
| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
25 Depreciation and amortisation expense |
Depreciation on property. plant and equioment 956,97 | 9R7.14
Amortisation of intangible assets 230.00
Depreciation on Right of use assets 31.72
Total 1,218.69 1,228.02
{Tin lakhs)
31 Miarch 2024 31 March 2023
26 Other expenses
Auditors remuneration 4.65 4.65
Conveyance - 0.07
Development Fees 3.00 3.00
Insurance .05 26,46
Premium on redemption 140,00 140,00
Loss on derecognition ot ROU assets 1559
Professional & consultancy charges 1107 1270
Rates & taxes 043 4.80
Miscellaneous expenses 0.06 6.07
166.81 213.34




(% in lakhs;

31 March 2024

51 March 2023 |

27 Tax expense
The major components of income tax for the vear are as under:

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax - current year
MAT credit entitlement - earlier year

Effective tax rate

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax at statutory rate [o the income tax expense at Company's
effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is as follows:

¥ in ialkhs;
l' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit before tax | (2,248.73) (12,267.39)

Income tax r i

Statutory income tax rate of 25 17% (25.17%} on profit | i566.01)1 (3,087.70)

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries I

Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 404 37 352.83

Additional allowances for tax purposes 11,551.08) 1438 15)!
| Other temporary ditfrence 1,712.72 3,173.02 |
| Tawexp TECOR d in the st of profit and loss 1 0.00 EI.DGj

Deferred tax recognized in statement of other comarehensive income Tin lakhs)

For the year ended 31 March ' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Employee retirement benefits obligation = i

The appilcable tax rate 15 the standard effective corporate income tax fate in india. The tax rate 15 25.17% for the vear ended 21 March

2024,

Detf=rred tax assets and hiabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to du so. For analvsis of the deferred tax

batances (after offset] for financial reporting purposes refer note 4.

The Company does net have any *empora: v differences in respect of unutiliz2d tax losses as at 31 March 2024

Defeyred tax recognizad in st ot profit and loss

T

¥ in jakhs!

For the year ended 31 March

31 March 2024

31 March 2022

Emplayes retirement benefits abligation
Allowarices for credit losses
Depreciation and amortization

Mat credit entitlement

Total -
(T in lakhs)

[T Reconciliation of deferred ax as.ets / {isabilities) net: 31 March 2024 31 narch 2723
Opening balance 1501) (901}
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recogmised in

- Statement of profit and toss 901 {
Recognised in nther comprehensive income i = i i
Total| {0.00) {5.63)

Mat credit entitlement 1 . -
Toral] .00} (9.01!




28 Leases

a Dperating leases granted by the Company

Nates farming part of the Financlal Statements for the wear ended 31 March 2024

DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITER

The company has given property under cancellable lease agreement that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the Lessor and the Lessee,

Description of feasin; (T in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rent income as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1,204.99 1,203.74
Gross carrying value of asset || premises in 66,534.14 31,291.38
(Accumulated depreciation 9,546.12 £,359.15
Dep recognised in of Profit & Loss 1,218.69 1,228.02
Impalrment Losses - -
[2in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Lease rental Incame for the year 748,50 748,50
Future Lease rental obli Ivable junder flable lease)
Nat later than one year i 3,036.88
Later than one year but nat later than five years 14,871.24 14,124.17
Later than fiva years 73,092.87 B1,961.15

b Dperating leases taken by the Company

Lease of assets under which all the risk and rewards of ownership are effectively ratained by the lessor are classified as of
recognized as expense, except to the extent projectwise capitalised against on-gaing construction, on acerual basis,

perating leases. Lease payments under oparating leases are

in accordance with the terms of respective lease agresments.

(

=

(T in akhs)
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Lease rental charges for the year 263.41 25219
Future Lease rental obligation payable (under non-eanesiiable lease]
Mot later than one year 27024 26341
Later than ane year but not later than five years 1,17451 1,137.57
Later than five years 8,094.51 8,401.69
29 Disclosure as per Ind-AS 115 (Leasas]
Right of Use Asset (ROU)
{a) ROU asset’ comprises leased assets of office/branch premises that do not meet the definition of investment property,
(T Lakhs|
[ 31 March 2024 31 March W’l
iOpening Balance 2,015.50 §
[Amartisation during the year 31.72
Disposal during the year [net) 43.54
Closing Balance 1,940.24
The aggregate amortisation expense on right-of-use asset is included under d expense in the standal of profit and lass
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities [T Lakhs]
31 March 2024 3L March 2023
Current lease liabilities 52,19 57.00
MNon current lease liabilities 2,455,66 2,303.89
Total 2,507.85 2,360.8%

(e) The following Is the movement in lease liabilities

31 March 2024

Opening Balance 2,360.89 2,280.58
Interest on lease lability 410.37 307.50
Payment of lease Habilities 26341 22717
Closing Balance 2,507.85 2,380,589

31 March 2023

(d) Lease liabilities Maturlty Analysis Lakhs
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
r analysls - cash flows
Less than ane year 170.24 263.41
One to five years 1,17451 1,137.57
Maore than five years 8,004.51 8,401.59
Total { lease liabilities 9,539.26 9.802.67
30 Contingent Liabilities
[T in lakhs)

[ | 31 March2024] 31 March 2023

[Disputed Direct Taxes * | 225.00 | 224.78 |
* Income Tax demands mainly include appeals filed by the Company before I h against the disall ce of 5/ 5 ete. The i of the opinion that

its tax cases will be decided in its favour and hence no provision is considered necesssary at this stage,
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Paymaent to Auditors

(7 in lakhs)

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Audit fees 3325 135
Tax audit fees 1.40 1.40
Total 4.65 4.65

Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has no dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises during the year ended 31 March, 2024, on the basis of informatien provided by the parties and avallable on recard,

Earnings per share (EPS)

1% in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profitf [Loss] after Tax (Rs.) (2,248.73 12,267.39)|
‘Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (in numbers) 50,10 50,10
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (in numbers) 50,10 50.10
Face value of equity shares (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic EFS [Rs.) {44 88)| (244.86)
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 44 33| (244.85)

34 Gaing Concern

During the earlier years, Company had defaulted in repayment of loans availed from two lenders. In this regard, both of the lenders had called upon the Company to make payment of an
amaount of Rs. 9,162.00 lakhs and Rs. 2,299.53 outstanding as at 30 fune 2021 with further interest w.e.f. 01 July 2011 as per the terms af sanction letters, Further, the Company had also
received notices from three lenders for invocation of corporate guarantees and two of the lenders had also initiated Corporate Insolvency Resalution Process {CIRP) against the Company
[Carporate guarantor/Corporate debtor), Considering the improved admissions and revival of the elass room attendance and mutually agreed terms between the lenders and the
Company, a cut back arrangement was agreed by virtue of which certain percentage of collection from school at Mumbai been taken by lenders. Further, the Company has entered into a
settlement agreement during the year to settle the corporate guarantee obligations of the Company for an amount of Rs, 28,500 lakhs. The Company Is in negotiation with lenders for
restricturing and rearrangement of the said balance loans and is hopefull of an amicable mutually agreed resolution to the said proposal and believes that company will enable to settle
Its llabilitles as they fall due, and accordingly, these financial statements have been prapared on a going concern basis.

As reported in preceding year, Yes Bank Limited (Yes Bank) vide jts notice dated 9 August 2021 [received on 10 August 2021) addressed to the Company had invoked the Carporate
Guarantee upon non-repayment of credit facllitles [during COVID-1% pandemic) availed by faur trusts/entity, and called upon the Company te make payment of an amount of ¥ ¥l
44,962.56 (including interest and ather charges upto 31 July 2021). Also, the Company received notice dated 01 December 2022, regarding filing ef petitions by Yes Bank under Section 7
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2018 {IBC) to initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP] of the Campany (as corporate guarantors| before the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal [NCLT), Mumbai. Further, Yes Bank vide its letters dated 30 December 2022 has informed the Company that it has assigned and transferred the above credit
facilities to J.C. Flowers Asset Reconstructions Private Limited (1.C. Flowers) and the amount outstanding therein as at 30 November 2022 is Tflakhs 52,254 63 [including interest and

penal charges).

Further, on August 7, 2023, the Company and Zee Learn Limited [ZLL) along with four trusts yentered into settl with |.C Flowers o settle obligations with respect to
foans borrowed by the said four trusts/entity. As per the terms of the settiement agreemant, Company, ZLL along with four trustsfentity have agreed to settle the shove obligation for
T/lakhs 28,500 {to be paid jointly and severally by Company, ZLL along with four trusts/entity) pursuant ta which Carporate t and other ies created by

Company and ZLL will be released by IC Flowers on receipt of the said settlement amount. The said settlement agreement became effective during the year ended 31 March 2024 and the

timelines for payment of the said settlement amount kave time to time been extended by IC Flowers along with payment of applicable interest and the latest extension is given till 30

May 2024. The Company, ZLL and four trusts/entity have requested IC Flawers for further extension of time till 30 June 2024,

H:rwewr the zaid trusts/entity have started running thelr operations effectively under the brick and mortar model and since the CIRP matter of the Company is sub-judice, and
of Corparate hlig: Is in process, the Company is of the opinlon that no liabifity is required to be provided 2s at 31 Mareh 2024,
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DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Employee Benefits

The Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - Employvee Benefits is as foliows:

Defined Contribution Plans
“Contribution to provident and other funds” is recogmzed as an expense in Note 23 "Employee benefit expenses” of the Statzment of Profit
and Loss,

Defined Benefit Plans
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial vaiuztion using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which

recognises each periad of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee bens=fit entitlement and measures 2ach unit separately to
build up the tinal obligation. The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) 15 also recognised using the projected unit credit method.
However, during the year there is no employee is covered under this benefit hence the benefits thereot will nat arise.

Expenses recognised during the vear

(¥ in lakhs;

31 March 2024 | 31 Niarch 2023 |
Gratuity (Non Funded)
i {Current Service Cost o
2 |Interest Cost :
3 |Past Service cost - =
Total E - -
Il Amount recognized in other comprehensive income (0] 31 March 2024 ] 31 March 2023
1 |Opening amount 1ecognized in OCI I I (4.33)
2 |Remeasurement during the period due 1o experience sdjustinents !
- Changes in financial assumptions -1
- Changes in experfence charges - 434
3|Closing amount recogaized in O ! |
Il Net {Asset] / Liabllity recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March ]_ 31 March 2624 | 31 March 7023
1 |Present value of defined berefit cbligation {DBO} ! - : -
2 |Net (Asset) / Liability i {
IV Reconciliation of Net {Aszet) / Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet as at 21 March 2024 E 21 March 2023
1 Met {Aset] [/ wability at the beginning of year R 1.31
2 |Expense as per | above -
3 |Other comprahensive income as per |l above | - (1.31)
Net {Asset) / Liability at the ena of the year - -
Y The following payments are expected to defined benefit pian in future years : 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
1 {Expected benefits for year 1 E -
2 |Expected benefits for year 2 to year 5 - -
3 |Expecied benefits beyond year & -
VI Actuarial Assumpiions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 |Discount rate 0.00% 0.00%
2 |Expected rate of saiary increase 0.00% 0.00%
3 |Maortality IALM [2012-14) IALM (2012-14) |
VIl Sensitivity Analysis

The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary
escalation rate. The following table suminarizes the impact in percentzge terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported aszumption by 100 5asis points

(¥ ir. 'akhs)

Diszount Rate

Saiary Fscalation
rate

Impact of increase<n 100 bps on DBO
Impact of decrease in 100 bps on DEC

Notes.
{a) The current service cost recognized as an expense is included in Note 23 Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity.

(b}

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 1s included in other comprehensive income.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflatiun, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and dermand in the employment market The sbove information is certified by the Actuary.

Significant actuarial asstmptions for the determination of the defineo obligation are discount rate, expected salary wicrease and
mortality. The sensitivity analysis above have been determined basea on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions

occurring at the end of the reporting period, while hoiding ali ather assumption: constant.

Other long term benefits

The obligation for leave benefits {non funded; is also recognised using the projectad unit credit method and accordingly the long term paid
absences have been valued. The ieave encashmeant expense is included in Mota 23 ‘Fmploves benefits expense’,

£
g




DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
37 Related Party Transactions

(i) List of Parties where control exists
Holding company [holding 100% equity shares of the company)

2ee Learn Limited
(ii) Other Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on the last day of the year.
Pan India Infrastructures Private Limited

Transactions with Related Parties

1% in lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A) Transactions with Other Related Parties
Conversion of borrowing in to Optionally Convertible Debentures - 11,578.89
Zee Learn Limited - 11,578.89
Unsecured Loans taken - 398.22
Zee Learn Limited - 398.22
Dividend Expenses - 0.01
Zee Learn Limited - 0.01
Premium on redemption of Preference share 140,00 140.00
Zee Learn Limited 140.00 140.00
Interest Expense 2.29 681.47
Zee Learn Limited - Interest on Intercorporate deposit - 679,47
Zee Learn Limited - Compulsarily Convertible Debentures 113 113
Zee Learn Limited - Optionally Convertible Debentures 1.16 0.87
Allowances/(reversals) for doubtful Capital Advance given 1,451.06 -
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited 1,451.06 -
(T in lakhs)
B) Balances outstanding 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loans, advances and deposits given 1,451.06 1,451.06)
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited 1,451.06 1,451.06
Long Term borrowings taken 10,942.05 10,942.05
Zee Learn Limited- Intercorporate Deposit 10,932.05 10,932.05
Zee Learn Limited- 0.1% Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 10.00 10,00
Other Equity 20,522.67 20,522.67
Zee Learn Limited- Security Premium 19,662.00 19,662.00
Zee Learn Limited- Capital Contribution B260.67 860.67
Instruments entirely equity in nature 22,913.49 22,910.64
Zee Learn Limited- 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 11,332.77 11,331.75
Zee Learn Limited- 0.01% Optionally Convertable Debentures 11,580.72 11,578.89
Trade Payable 444.89 444,99
Zee Learn Limited 444,99 444,99
Allowances for doubtful Capital advances given 1,451.06 -
Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited 1,451.06 R




38 Rent Expenses:

During the year, the company has incurred a total expenditure of? 263.41 (2023- T 227.19) on rent which ¥ 110.54 {2023 - ¥ 131.61) has been
transferred to CWIP, Classification of the expenditure in CWIP has been done since the some projects are under construction and hence yet to be

capitalised.

39 Present business activities:

The civil work of the company for the balance construction of the buildings at Karnal and Patiala to the Educational Trusts are in progress.

40 Projects Status and execution :

During the earlier years, the company had taken land at four locations on lease and had acquired land at one location for the purpeses of setting up of
educational infrastructures. The company had also acquired, development rights to develop a piece and parcel of land, from Taleem Research
Foundation at Mumbai, to bulld educational infrastructure. This development rights is acquired for 30 years w.e.f 1 January 2010 against a lump sum
development fees of /lakhs 10,500. The civil worlk for construction of all these educational infrastructures is completed except for location at Karnal

and Patiala.

During the year, Company has appointed Charterad Engineer and initiated assessment of civil construction completed for all schools at all locations.
Chartered Engineer has issued certificate on completion of structural and civil work for each school and each location. Based on the assessment report
and certificate provided by Chartered Engineer, Company has Capitalized the amount standing in these financial statements in investment property
under development and Intangible asset under development to investment property and intangible asset.

41 Ratio Disclosure

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance N D i
fa]  |Current ratio 34.6% 30.7%) 3,8%|Current assets Current liabilitles
(b} |Debt equity ratio 134.4% 118.2% 16.1% | Total liabilities Equity
{c)  |Debt service coverage ratio -1.4%) -33.3% 31.9%|Net operating income | Total debt
{d)  |Return on equity ratio -0.9% -48.9% 39.1%|Net income Equity
[e)  |Trade receivable turnover ratio 67.9% 26.2% 41.7%|Total sales Average debtors
) Met capital turnover ratio 5.3% 4.8% 0.5%|Tatal sales Equity
(gl [Met profit ratio -186.6% -1019.1% 832.5%|Net income Tatal sales
th) __|Return on capital employed -3.6%| -15.1% 15.5%|Eamning befare interest afCapital employed
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DIGITAL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial Instruments
Fi fal risk g bjective and palicies
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is ta finance the Company’s operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations,
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management of these risks,
) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. Financial Instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and other financial

" instruments.

1) Interest rate rish
Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of fixed interest bearing investments

because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flaw interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in
Interest rates,

The Company’s exposure to the risk of change in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term loan from banks. Cumpulsorily Convertable Debentures and
Intercorporate deposits carry fixed coupon rate and hence, is not considered for caleulation of interest rate sensitivity of the company.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant,

the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowings, as follows:
(¥ in lakhs)

|Increase [ decrease|  Effect on Profit

in basis points before tax
As an 31 March 2024 +50/-50 657.98
As on 31 March 2023 +50/-50 65.13

2] Foreign Currency risk
The Company does not entered into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

The Company does not undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, there is no exposures to exchange rate fluctuations.
Hence, the Company does not have any foreign currency risk exposure due to exchange rate fluctuations, therefore no sensitivity is required theracf.

3} Credit risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Company if, a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arlses principally from the

Company's receivables from it's customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at bank.
The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, Industry practices and the business envisrnment in which the entity operates. Expected

Credit Loss is based on actual eredit loss experienced and past trends based on the historical data.

Ageing of trade receivabl (% in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
.|Over six months 1,434.57 1,232.25
Less than six months 440.68 44426
Total 1,875.25 1,676.51
(7 in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
|Movemnent in allowance for credit loss during the year was as follows ;
Opening Balance - .
Add :- Provided during the year * »
Less i~ Reversal during the year ¥ >
Balance as at % =

|Net Trade receivable 1,875.25 1,676.51




b} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The Company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow i.e.
generated from operations. The Company consistently generated strong cash flows from operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and current |
provides adequate liquidity in short terms as well in the lang term.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 31 Mar 2024

(¥ In lakhs)
Between 1and 5
Less than 1 year year Beyond 5 years
Financial Liahilities
Trade payable and ather financial liabilities 2,09552 - 1,220.87
Borrowings 4,195.30 27,572.61 -
Total 6,290.82 27,572.61 1,220.87
" The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilitles including estimated interest payments as at 31 March 2023
1% in lakhs)
Between 1and 5
Less than 1 year year Beyond 5 years
|Financial Liabilities
Trade payahle and other financial liabilities 1,912.22 - 1,085.81
Borrowlings 3,092.50 26,546.39 -
[ Total| 5,004,72 26,546.39 1,085.81

i) Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company' s capital g t, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital structure to ensure that it will be

able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakehalders,

The Company monitor it's capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt

(7 In lakhs)
¥ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Gross Debt {inclusive [ong term and shart term debt) 30,665.11 29,638.89
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances 101.73 45.96
Net Debt 30,563.32 29,592.93
Total Equity 22,820.91 25,068.63
Total Capital 533813 STEELSE |
Gearing ratio S?.Zﬁr 5&1-@21
iii}  Categories of financial instruments and fair value thereof
(7 in lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Carrying amaount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
A) Financial assets
i} Measured at amortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,875.25 1,875.25 1,676.51 1,676.51
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances 101.79 10179 45.96 45,96
Other financial assets 3864 38.64 3632 36.32
B) Financial liabilities
i} Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings (Mon current) 27,57161 27,572.61 26,546.39 26,546.39
Borrowings (Current) 3,092.50 3,092.50 3,082.50 3,092.50
Other Financial Liabilities 3,316.39 3,316.39 2,998.04 2,998.04

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents and bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other current lizbilities approximate their fair
value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Difference between carrying amount and fair value of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities
and borrowings subsequently measured at amertised cost is not significant in each of the year presented.,

43 Collateral / Security Pledged
The carrying amaunt of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings of the company and subsidiary companies are as under ;

(% Lakhs)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Praperty, plant and equipment {includes Capital work in progress, Investment
property, Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development) 51,685.57 57,005.70
Other current assets 1,985.47 1,731.26
Total assets pledged 53,671.04 58,736.96
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Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet far liabilities arising from financing actlvities as required by Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" is as under:

(% in lakhs)

31March 2023 | Cash Inflaws Cash outfl e n':::‘::’h mag:::r Charges ] 31 March 2024
Long Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 26,546.39 - (677.22) 1,703.44 = 27,572.61
Short Term Borrowings 3,092.50 - - 3,092.50
Lease liabilities (including interest) 2,360.88 - {205.33) - 35230 2,507.85

3 March 2022 | Cashlnflows | Cashoutflows [———ro Af:':}::"’ Cha;:::r Charees | 31 March 2023
Leng Term Borrowings (Including Current maturities) 30,760.08 - 715.80 - (4,933.49) 26,546.39
Short Term Borrawings 3,092.50 - - - - 3,092.50
Lease liahilities (including interest) 2,280.58 - (263.99) - 344.30 2,360.89

. Exceptional item

(a) During the earlier years, the Company had given Capital advances and deposits to Pan India Infrastructure Private Limited (PIIPL) tawards construction of schoals. There are ongaoing

proceedings going on against PIIPL w.r.t Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ({IBC) before the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Mumbal. Accordingly, the Company, out of abundant caution and prudent accounting practices, has provided ¥/lakhs 1,451.06 towards impairment of its
capital advances and deposits and the same was disclosed as an "Exceptional item" in the financials statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2024,

(b) The Cornpany has outstanding receivable of lease rental income of ¥/lakhs 7,672.88, and also given loans of ¥/lakhs 6,798.91 to various trusts ta support school operations, agaregating

to Tflakhs 14,471.79 as at 31 March 2023, On account of delays In recovery (including interest accrued thereon) and further, there are ongoing proceedings against Company w.r.t
Carpaorate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section 7 of the Insalvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) before the Hon'ble National Campany Law Tribunal (NCLT) Mumbai,
the Company, out of abundant caution and prudent accounting practices, has provided for ¥/lakhs 5,996.37 out of Debtors and Flakhs 4,858.63 out of loans towards impairment loss
under the expected credit loss model against the said loan/raceivables and the said impairment loss was disclosed as an "Exceptional item" In the standalone financials statements for

the year ended 31 March 2023,

Relationship with Struck off companies

There is no transaction done with Struck off companies

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

thereunder.

439 a) The Comparny has net advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrawed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entities, including
ded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall {i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in ether persons or
entities fdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on beha]f of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
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foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the under

Benefidaries.

b} The Company has nat received any funds from any person(s) or entitylies), including forelgn entities [Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the company shall (i} directly or indiractly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

There are no transactions related to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclased as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1861,

The Company has not traded ar invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

Prior year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classifications / disclosures, figures in brackets pertain to previous

year.




